# MEETING OF THE WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL

## Held on Monday, 9 December 2019

### At 7.00 pm in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney

#### **Present:**

Councillor D Enright (Chair)

Councillors: J Aitman L Duncan

L Ashbourne V Gwatkin
T Ashby A D Harvey
R Bolger M Jones
D Butterfield A Prosser
O Collins R Smith

Officers: Nicky Cayley Democratic Services Officer

Adam Clapton Office Manager

Others: 2 members of the public.

### 489 **APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE**

Apologies for their absence were received from Cllrs Eaglestone, King, McMahon and Temple.

## 490 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

There were no declarations of interest in matters to be discussed at the meeting.

## 491 **MINUTES**

The Council received and considered the minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2019.

a) RESOLVED: to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2019 for signature by the Chair.

# b) MATTERS ARISING:

 $\underline{\text{Minute 399}}$  – A member asked if there was an update on the paths at Burwell being resurfaced. The Office Manager replied that he did not believe there had been an update.

Minute 401 e) – A member asked if the letter had been written concerning WODC's housing stock. It was confirmed that it was in progress.

Minute 403 2. – A member asked if the flag flying was still taking place in the event of Brexit taking place. The Chair confirmed that it would.

#### 492 **PUBLIC PARTICIPATION**

The Council adjourned in order for Ashley Smith and Peter Hammond to speak about pollution in the river Windrush and local watercourses.

After the address the Council reconvened.

## 493 **MOTION**

The item was moved up the agenda with the express permission of the Chair, in order for the members of the public to hear the debate.

Cllr Prosser presented the following motion to Council, proposing that the Town Council: -

- 1. Writes to Thames Water and the Environment Agency to express its deep concern and disquiet that sewage is being released and pumped into our local rivers and water courses, including, the river Windrush and Colwell Brook.
- 2. Expresses that not only is this damaging to the health of the rivers themselves, but it is also a serious health risk to our citizens and their pets, who may use, and come into contact with these rivers and water courses.
- 3. That Thames Water and The Environment Agency take urgent steps and provide a clear and credible response and action plan to prevent this situation occurring again.

Members discussed the motion and were extremely supportive of it and also of WASP. It was felt that the letters should be copied to the District and County Councils.

**RESOLVED:** that the motion as presented be passed unanimously with the addition of the letters being copies to the District and County Councils.

# 494 <u>WITNEY COMMUNITY POLICING ISSUES</u>

There was no police presence at the meeting.

# 495 AN UPDATE FROM WITNEY OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCILLORS AND WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCILLORS

Cllr David Harvey – West Oxfordshire District Council

Clir Harvey advised that the District Council was working on Climate Management with its new Climate Change Manager. Electric car charging points were out to tender and it was hoped they would be installed by the spring. Clir Harvey also spoke about zero carbon estates which was something that the Climate Change Manager had experience of. There was a need to "futureproof" housing developments and to recognise the benefit of retrofitting; this however would need huge investment from Central Government. The Council was also looking at hydroelectric power and a single use plastics policy.

The East Witney Development was also coming on stream with a public exhibition being held that week and a scoping planning application being submitted.

#### Cllr Owen Collins - West Oxfordshire District Council

Cllr Collins reported that he had sat on the Single Use Plastics Working Party which had now wound up. The recommendations were going to cabinet.

#### Cllr Luci Ashbourne

Cllr Ashbourne advised that at the District Council there had been a motion about Brexit and there would be a task and finish working party on this. Town and Parish Councils would be involved in this and would be given guidance.

**RESOLVED:** that the verbal updates be noted.

# 496 REPORT BACK FROM THE COUNCILLORS ON THE WORK WITH EXTERNAL BODIES WHERE THEY SERVE AS THE TOWN COUNCIL'S NOMINATED REPRESENTATIVE

There were no updates for this item.

### 497 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES: LOWER WINDRUSH VALLEY PROJECT

A letter had been received from the Lower Windrush Valley Project asking for the Council to nominate a representative for the organisation. Cllr Bolger volunteered to become the representative and all members supported this.

**RESOLVED:** that Cllr Rosa Bolger be elected as the Council's representative for the Lower Windrush Valley Project.

## 498 MINUTES OF COMMITTEES AND SUB COMMITTEES

# a) <u>PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - 15 OCTOBER, 5 NOVEMBER AND 26 NOVEMBER 2019</u>

The Chair of the Committee presented these minutes to Council and moved their acceptance.

#### b) HALLS AND GREEN SPACES COMMITTEE -11 NOVEMBER 2019

The Chair of the Committee presented these minutes to Council and moved their acceptance.

A member asked if there was an update on the ownership of Park Road play area. The Officer Manager replied that he knew that there had been dialogue with the solicitor but no more than that. Members requested an update for the next meeting.

Cllr Jones reported that she was working with Mr Clements on the names previously submitted as being eligible for the war memorial to see if they were elsewhere in the area. She would provide an update for the next meeting.

#### c) STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE – 25 NOVEMBER 2019

The Chair of the Committee presented these minutes to Council and moved their acceptance.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- a) <u>Planning and Development Committee</u> that the minutes of the Planning and Development Committee of 15 October, 5 November and 26 November 2019 be received and any recommendations therein be approved;
- b) <u>Halls and Green Spaces Committee</u> that the minutes of the Halls and Green Spaces Committee of 11 November 2019 be received and any recommendations therein be approved;
- c) <u>Stronger Communities Committee</u> that the minutes of the Stronger Communities Committee held on 18 November 2019 be received and any recommendations therein be approved;
- d) <u>Policy, Governance and Finance Committee</u> that the minutes of the Policy, Governance and Finance Committee held on 25 November 2019 be received and any recommendations therein be approved.

#### 499 **CIVIC ANNOUNCEMENTS**

The Council received and considered the report of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor on their engagements undertaken since the last Full Council meeting.

**RESOLVED:** that the report be noted.

## 500 **COMMUNICATION FROM THE LEADER**

There was no communication from the Leader.

# 501 **URGENT MATTERS - REPORT OF THE TOWN CLERK**

The Council received and considered the report of the Town Clerk, concerning the current Christmas Lights contract, under which the contractors had failed to deliver the full complement of lights and had erected some late, and the defibrillator on the pavilion at The Leys which was being used during anti-social behaviour to access the roof.

#### **RECOMMENDED:**

- 1. that the report be noted;
- 2. that the Town Council should not pay any further money towards the outstanding balance with Gala Lights and should seek to retain/regain the full amount of money due for the penalties £17, 722 and not accept the contractor's current offer;
- 3. that the contract with Gala Lights be terminated and that the contract be put out to tender as soon as possible in the new year for the 2020 lights display;
- 4. that the decision to relocate the defibrillator on the pavilion at The Leys be delegated to the Operations and Estates Officer, and that he be asked to report back where it has been moved to at the next Halls and Green Spaces Committee.

# 502 **CORRESPONDENCE**

There was no correspondence for consideration.

# 503 **QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL**

There were no questions to the Leader of the Council.

# 504 **SEALING OF DOCUMENTS**

A lease to Kenmar Estates Ltd for the Cemetery Lodge, at Tower Hill Cemetery, had been sealed on 5 October 2019.

**RESOLVED:** that the sealing of the document be noted.

The meeting closed at: 8.20 pm

Chair